
July 11, 2023

Cleve Reasoner, Chief Executive Officer
  and Chief Nuclear Officer
Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation
P.O. Box 411
Burlington, KS 66839

SUBJECT: WOLF CREEK GENERATING STATION – INTEGRATED INSPECTION 
REPORT 05000482/2023002

Dear Cleve Reasoner:

On June 30, 2023, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an inspection at 
Wolf Creek Generating Station. On July 6, 2023, the NRC inspectors discussed the results of 
this inspection with Jaime McCoy, Site Vice President, and other members of your staff. The 
results of this inspection are documented in the enclosed report.

Two findings of very low safety significance (Green) are documented in this report. Both findings 
involved violations of NRC requirements. We are treating these violations as non-cited violations 
(NCVs) consistent with section 2.3.2 of the Enforcement Policy.

If you contest the violations or the significance or severity of the violations documented in this 
inspection report, you should provide a response within 30 days of the date of this inspection 
report, with the basis for your denial, to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: 
Document Control Desk, Washington, DC 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional 
Administrator, Region IV; the Director, Office of Enforcement; and the NRC Resident Inspector 
at Wolf Creek Generating Station.

If you disagree with a cross-cutting aspect assignment in this report, you should provide a 
response within 30 days of the date of this inspection report, with the basis for your 
disagreement, to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, 
Washington, DC 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional Administrator, Region IV; and the 
NRC Resident Inspector at Wolf Creek Generating Station.
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This letter, its enclosure, and your response (if any) will be made available for public inspection 
and copying at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html and at the NRC Public Document 
Room in accordance with Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations 2.390, “Public 
Inspections, Exemptions, Requests for Withholding.”

Sincerely,

Gregory E. Werner, Chief
Reactor Projects Branch B
Division of Operating Reactor Safety

Docket No. 05000482
License No. NPF-42

Enclosure:
As stated 

cc w/ encl: Distribution via LISTSERV

Signed by Werner, Gregory
 on 07/11/23

http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html
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SUMMARY

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) continued monitoring the licensee’s 
performance by conducting an integrated inspection at Wolf Creek Generating Station, in 
accordance with the Reactor Oversight Process. The Reactor Oversight Process is the NRC’s 
program for overseeing the safe operation of commercial nuclear power reactors. Refer to 
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/operating/oversight.html for more information.

List of Findings and Violations

Failure to Maintain Fire Protection Compensatory Measures During Control Room Ventilation 
Isolation Signal Actuation
Cornerstone Significance Cross-Cutting 

Aspect
Report 
Section

Mitigating 
Systems

Green
NCV 05000482/2023002-01 
Open/Closed

None (NPP) 71111.05

The inspectors identified a Green finding and associated non-cited violation of technical 
specification 5.4.1.d, for the licensee’s failure that written procedures shall be maintained 
covering fire protection program implementation. Specifically, the licensee failed to maintain 
Procedure AP 10-103, “Fire Protection Impairment Control,” revision 39, which required a fire 
compensatory measure to maintain engineered safety feature switchgear rooms A and B 
halon system functional during a control room ventilation isolation actuation.

Failure to Implement Emergency Exhaust System Surveillance Testing Procedure
Cornerstone Significance Cross-Cutting 

Aspect
Report 
Section

Barrier Integrity Green
NCV 05000482/2023002-02 
Open/Closed

[H.5] - Work 
Management

71111.13

The inspectors identified a Green finding and associated non-cited violation of technical 
specification 5.4.1.e., for the licensee’s failure that written procedures shall be implemented 
for Technical Specification 5.5.11, “Ventilation Filter Testing Program (VFTP).” Specifically, 
the licensee failed to properly implement surveillance Procedure STS PE-006, “Charcoal 
Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units,” revision 17, when establishing the 
prerequisites for performing train A emergency exhaust system in-place leak testing of the 
charcoal absorber causing train B emergency exhaust system to become inoperable when an 
operator opened the wrong breaker.

Additional Tracking Items

None.

https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/operating/oversight.html
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PLANT STATUS

Wolf Creek Generating Station began the inspection period at full power. On June 2, 2023, the 
licensee reduced power to 62 percent at the request of the transmission operator to facilitate 
planned maintenance of the 345 kV Waverly/LaCygne line and scheduled surveillance testing of 
the main turbine valves, and the unit was return to full power the same day. On two occasions 
during the quarter the licensee reduced power to 70 percent for flexible power operations 
(based on daily market demand) and returned to full power after each occasion.

INSPECTION SCOPES

Inspections were conducted using the appropriate portions of the inspection procedures (IPs) in 
effect at the beginning of the inspection unless otherwise noted. Currently approved IPs with 
their attached revision histories are located on the public website at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/doc-collections/insp-manual/inspection-procedure/index.html. Samples were declared 
complete when the IP requirements most appropriate to the inspection activity were met 
consistent with Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 2515, “Light-Water Reactor Inspection 
Program - Operations Phase.” The inspectors performed activities described in IMC 2515, 
Appendix D, “Plant Status,” observed risk significant activities, and completed onsite portions of 
IPs. The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and 
interviewed personnel to assess licensee performance and compliance with Commission rules 
and regulations, license conditions, site procedures, and standards.  

REACTOR SAFETY

71111.01 - Adverse Weather Protection

Seasonal Extreme Weather Sample (IP Section 03.01) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors evaluated readiness for seasonal extreme weather conditions prior to 
the onset of summer readiness for the following systems:

 diesel generator rooms and switchyard on June 8, 2023

71111.04 - Equipment Alignment

Partial Walkdown Sample (IP Section 03.01) (4 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated system configurations during partial walkdowns of the following 
systems/trains:

(1) train A control room emergency ventilation system on April 8, 2023
(2) energizing non-safety-related 13.8 kV PA02 bus using emergency diesel 

generator A/B on April 27, 2023
(3) train A control room air conditioning system on May 11, 2023
(4) emergency diesel generator A exhaust system and silencer on May 25, 2023

http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/insp-manual/inspection-procedure/index.html
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/insp-manual/inspection-procedure/index.html
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71111.05 - Fire Protection

Fire Area Walkdown and Inspection Sample (IP Section 03.01) (7 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the implementation of the fire protection program by conducting a 
walkdown and performing a review to verify program compliance, equipment functionality, 
material condition, and operational readiness of the following fire areas:

(1) engineered safety feature switchgear rooms A and B fire impairment during control 
ventilation isolation signal lineup surveillance testing, fire areas C-9 and C-10, on 
April 8, 2023

(2) train B control room air conditioning room, fire area A-21, on April 16, 2023
(3) engineered safety feature switchgear rooms fire response and halon actuation, fire 

areas C-9 and C-10, on April 20, 2023
(4) train A control room air conditioning room, fire area A-22, on April 24, 2023
(5) control room envelope habitability testing fire impairments, fire areas A-21, A-22, 

C-10, C-15, C-16, and C-35, on May 19, 2023
(6) emergency diesel generator A planned 14-day outage allowance hourly fire watch 

requirements, fire area CC-1, on May 23, 2023
(7) steam tunnel emergency access hatch failure to latch and temporary closing device 

modification fire impairment, fire areas A-6 and A-23, on May 30, 2023

71111.07A - Heat Exchanger/Sink Performance

Annual Review (IP Section 03.01) (1 Sample)

The inspectors evaluated readiness and performance of:

(1) train A control room air conditioning system heat exchanger on May 25, 2023

71111.11Q - Licensed Operator Requalification Program and Licensed Operator Performance

Licensed Operator Performance in the Actual Plant/Main Control Room (IP Section 03.01) 
(1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors observed and evaluated licensed operator performance in the control 
room during flexible power operations (based on daily market demand) on April 5, 
2023.

Licensed Operator Requalification Training/Examinations (IP Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors observed and evaluated the licensed operator simulator evaluation 
scenarios on April 24, 2023.
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71111.12 - Maintenance Effectiveness

Maintenance Effectiveness (IP Section 03.01) (2 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the effectiveness of maintenance to ensure the following 
structures, systems, and components (SSCs) remain capable of performing their intended 
function:

(1) control room air conditioning and emergency ventilation system maintenance 
effectiveness on April 26, 2023

(2) auxiliary building heating, ventilation, and air conditioning system degraded 
airflow (a)(1) actions on May 9, 2023

Quality Control (IP Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

The inspectors evaluated the effectiveness of maintenance and quality control activities to 
ensure the following SSC remains capable of performing its intended function:

(1) load shedder and emergency load sequencer card failures on June 14, 2023

71111.13 - Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emergent Work Control

Risk Assessment and Management Sample (IP Section 03.01) (6 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the accuracy and completeness of risk assessments for the 
following planned and emergent work activities to ensure configuration changes and 
appropriate work controls were addressed:

(1) train B centrifugal charging system technical equipment outage on April 4, 2023
(2) train B class 1E air conditioning system extended technical specification equipment 

outage due to not being able to obtain the required vacuum on the refrigeration 
system on April 27, 2023

(3) train A control room air conditioning technical equipment outage on May 9, 2023
(4) train A emergency exhaust system failed charcoal adsorber in-place leakage 

surveillance testing emergent work on May 16, 2023
(5) emergency diesel generator A 7-day technical specification equipment outage on 

May 24, 2023
(6) train B safety injection pump breaker failure to charger emergent work on June 9, 

2023

71111.15 - Operability Determinations and Functionality Assessments

Operability Determination or Functionality Assessment (IP Section 03.01) (6 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the licensee's justifications and actions associated with the 
following operability determinations and functionality assessments:

(1) control room habitability during halon discharge in the engineered safety feature 
switchgear room during a control room ventilation isolation lineup operability 
determination on April 20, 2023

(2) train B component cooling water room cooler motor continued use operability 
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determination on April 25, 2023
(3) bypass feed regulation valves A and B test failure operability determination on May 8, 

2023
(4) train A control room air conditioning system potential degraded airflow and instrument 

error operability determination on May 18, 2023
(5) load shedder and emergency load sequencer actuation logic test performed by 

automatic test indicator potential does capture all failure modes operability 
determination on May 22, 2023

(6) trains A and B emergency exhaust system inoperable for failed surveillance testing 
and incorrect breaker operation past operability determination on June 1, 2023

71111.18 - Plant Modifications

Temporary Modifications and/or Permanent Modifications (IP Section 03.01 and/or 03.02) 
(3 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the following temporary or permanent modifications:

(1) updated compensatory measures for engineered safety switchgear rooms A and B 
fire on May 15, 2023

(2) control room ventilation isolation signal system chlorine monitors spare in-place on 
May 22, 2023

(3) emergency diesel generator A number 5 crankcase cover gasket replacement on 
May 31, 2023

71111.24 - Testing and Maintenance of Equipment Important to Risk

The inspectors evaluated the following testing and maintenance activities to verify system 
operability and/or functionality:

Post-Maintenance Testing (PMT) (IP Section 03.01) (9 Samples)

(1) train B centrifugal charging pump post-maintenance testing on April 5, 2023
(2) train A centrifugal charging pump room cooler post-maintenance testing on April 24, 

2023
(3) train B centrifugal charging pump minimum flow valve, BGHV8111, and component 

cooling water return isolation valve, BGV0268, post-maintenance testing on April 25, 
2023

(4) train B class 1E electrical air conditioning system technical specification outage 
post-maintenance testing on May 11, 2023

(5) train A control room air conditioning technical specification equipment outage 
post-maintenance testing on May 12, 2023

(6) train A essential service water strainer trash valve failed post-maintenance testing on 
May 23, 2023

(7) emergency diesel generator A technical specification equipment outage 
post-maintenance testing on May 30, 2023

(8) emergency diesel generator A ventilation damper post-maintenance and fan 
functionality testing on June 15, 2023

(9) train B safety injection pump breaker failure to charge closing spring repair 
post-maintenance testing on June 20, 2023
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Surveillance Testing (IP Section 03.01) (4 Samples)

(1) control room emergency ventilation system actuation logic testing on May 22, 2023
(2) control room and building habitability testing on May 22, 2023
(3) control room emergency ventilation system radiation monitor surveillance testing on 

June 20, 2023
(4) train A control room air conditioning air flow surveillance testing on June 21, 2023

Inservice Testing (IST) (IP Section 03.01) (1 Sample)

(1) train A residual heat removal heat exchanger outlet isolation valve on April 18, 2023

Reactor Coolant System Leakage Detection Testing (IP Section 03.01) (1 Sample)

(1) reactor coolant system leakage detection testing on April 16, 2023

Diverse and Flexible Coping Strategies (FLEX) Testing (IP Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

(1) FLEX diesel generator fuel oil testing and replacement requirements on June 27, 
2023

71114.06 - Drill Evaluation

Drill/Training Evolution Observation (IP Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

The inspectors evaluated:

(1) observed licensed operator requalification drill and exercise performance on April 27, 
2023

RADIATION SAFETY

71124.06 - Radioactive Gaseous and Liquid Effluent Treatment

Walkdowns and Observations (IP Section 03.01) (4 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the following radioactive effluent systems during walkdowns:

(1) unit vent (fuel/auxiliary building, access control areas, containment purge, condenser 
air discharge), GT-RE-21A and -21B

(2) radwaste building vent (radwaste building, waste gas decay tank discharge), 
GH-RE-10A and -10B

(3) steam generator blowdown discharge monitor, BM-RE-52
(4) liquid radwaste discharge monitor, HB-RE-18

Sampling and Analysis (IP Section 03.02) (3 Samples)

Inspectors evaluated the following effluent samples, sampling processes and compensatory 
samples:

(1) unit vent sampling for gas release permit U1GC2023-070
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(2) steam generator blowdown sampling for liquid release permit U1LC2023-020
(3) The NRC credits a baseline sample from the International Atomic Energy Agency 

(IAEA) Operational Safety Review Team (OSART) review conducted March 6 through 
March 23, 2023 (see memo dated July 5, 2023, ADAMS accession number 
ML23179A213).

Dose Calculations (IP Section 03.03) (3 Samples)

The inspectors evaluated the following dose calculations:

(1) The doses to members of the public associated with liquid effluent release permit 
2023-0203.

(2) The doses to members of the public associated with gaseous effluent sampling and 
analyses for gaseous release permit 2023-070.

(3) The NRC credits a baseline sample from the IAEA OSART review conducted March 6 
through March 23, 2023.

Abnormal Discharges (IP Section 03.04) (1 Sample)

The inspectors evaluated the following abnormal discharges:

(1) On September 9, 2020, the licensee inadvertently released approximately 
510-gallons of liquid effluent from a misidentified liquid waste monitor tank. The 
licensee evaluated the radiological dose consequences of the release and 
determined that no limits had been exceeded. The release was documented in 
release permit U1LB2020-038.

71124.07 - Radiological Environmental Monitoring Program

Environmental Monitoring Equipment and Sampling (IP Section 03.01) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors evaluated environmental monitoring equipment and observed 
collection of environmental samples. A portion of the baseline sample was credited 
from the IAEA's OSART review conducted March 6 through March 23, 2023.

Radiological Environmental Monitoring Program (IP Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors evaluated the implementation of the licensee’s radiological 
environmental monitoring program. A portion of the baseline sample was credited 
from the IAEA's OSART review conducted March 6 through March 23, 2023.

GPI Implementation (IP Section 03.03) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors evaluated the licensee’s implementation of the groundwater protection 
initiative program to identify incomplete or discontinued program elements. The 
licensee is implementing their groundwater protection program monitoring according 
to NEI 07-07, August 2007.
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OTHER ACTIVITIES – BASELINE

71151 - Performance Indicator Verification

The inspectors verified licensee performance indicators submittals listed below:

BI01: Reactor Coolant System (RCS) Specific Activity Sample (IP Section 02.10) (1 Sample)

(1) April 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023

BI02: RCS Leak Rate Sample (IP Section 02.11) (1 Sample)

(1) April 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023

MS07: High Pressure Injection Systems (IP Section 02.06) (1 Sample)

(1) April 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023

MS10: Cooling Water Support Systems (IP Section 02.09) (1 Sample)

(1) April 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023

71152A - Annual Follow-up Problem Identification and Resolution

Annual Follow-up of Selected Issues (Section 03.03) (3 Samples)

The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s implementation of its corrective action program 
related to the following issues:

(1) load shedder and emergency load sequencer relay driver card age related corrective 
actions and extent of condition on May 31, 2023

(2) confirmatory order EA 18-165 2020 self-assessment and effectiveness review on 
June 20, 2023

(3) security performance improvement action plan review on June 26, 2023

71152S - Semiannual Trend Problem Identification and Resolution

Semiannual Trend Review (Section 03.02) (1 Sample)

(1) The inspectors reviewed the licensee's corrective action program for potential 
adverse trends that might be indicative of a more significant safety issue associated 
with human performance events declining trend on June 27, 2023.
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INSPECTION RESULTS

Failure to Maintain Fire Protection Compensatory Measures During Control Room Ventilation 
Isolation Signal Actuation
Cornerstone Significance Cross-Cutting 

Aspect
Report 
Section

Mitigating 
Systems

Green
NCV 05000482/2023002-01 
Open/Closed

None (NPP) 71111.05

The inspectors identified a Green finding and associated non-cited violation of technical 
specification 5.4.1.d, for the licensee’s failure that written procedures shall be maintained 
covering fire protection program implementation. Specifically, the licensee failed to maintain 
Procedure AP 10-103, “Fire Protection Impairment Control,” revision 39, which required a fire 
compensatory measure to maintain engineered safety feature switchgear rooms A and B 
halon system functional during a control room ventilation isolation actuation.
Description: The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s Updated Safety Analysis Report (USAR), 
normal operating procedures, and surveillance procedures for the control room ventilation 
isolation signal (CRVIS) and the fire protection program. Specifically, the inspectors reviewed 
surveillance Procedure STS GK-005A, “Control Room Ventilation Isolation Response Time 
Test – Train A,” revision 2, and Procedure AP 10-100, “Fire Protection Program,” revision 25, 
and identified the following:

 The licensee’s fire protection program uses a defense-in-depth approach to fire 
protection to ensure that the plant can be safely shut down and public health and 
safety is maintained in the event of a fire. This protection is accomplished through 
automatic detection and suppression systems, trained personnel, fire emergency 
procedures, and administrative controls.
 

 Procedure AP 10-100 provides the list of procedures for the licensee’s fire protection 
program. These procedures implement the fire protection program as described in the 
USAR which included:

o Procedure AP 10-103, “Fire Protection Impairment Control,” revision 39, 
defines the compensatory measures required for out-of-service or degraded 
fire protection features. 

o Off normal Procedure OFN KC-016, “Fire Response,” revision 52, was 
developed to provide instructions for establishing response to, control of, and 
recovery from fire events.

o Alarm response Procedure ALR KC-888, “Fire Protection Panel KC-008 Alarm 
Response,” revision 33, provides control room personnel with basic 
instructions for responding to each alarm, instructions for clearing the alarm, 
and a list of the field instruments which could generate the alarm.

Procedure STS GK-005A manually initiates train A(B) CRVIS by depressing the actuate 
pushbutton on SA HS-9(13), which controls building ventilation train A(B) isolation. This 
inserts the CRVIS signal and opens control room filtration system A(B) supply dampers. If 
control room filtration system supply dampers are closed with a CRVIS signal present, they 
will reopen once their associated close signal is removed. The only way to maintain the 
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supply dampers closed is to reset the CRVIS signal prior to closing them or remove power 
from the dampers prior to removing the close signal by removing control power fuses in the 
control room. However, during an engineered safety feature (ESF) switchgear room fire, the 
control room radiation monitor lost power and both trains of CRVIS will actuate and seal in. 
Therefore, the only way to ensure the control room filtration system A(B) supply dampers 
remain closed was to remove power to maintain the ESF switchgear room A and B halon 
boundary in event of the fire. This is due to one of two control radiation monitor loss of power 
and causing a CRVIS actuation that cannot be reset. The licensee did have guidance in their 
normal operating Procedure SYS GK-122, “Manual CRVIS Line-Up,” revision 25, to remove 
power from the control room filtration system supply dampers by removing fuses. However, 
SYS GK-122 was not referenced in procedures STS GK-005A, AP 10-103, ALR KC-888, and 
OFN KC-016. Additionally, SYS GK-122 was not referenced as one of the procedures that 
implements the licensee’s fire protection program in accordance with procedure AP 10-100. 
The licensee would have to rely on operator knowledge during ESF switchgear room fire to 
identify the need to use the guidance in SYS GK-122.  

From the above, the inspectors determined the compensatory measure for the ESF 
switchgear rooms degraded halon barrier during CRVIS in accordance with procedure 
AP 10-103, attachment E, was not maintained. Specifically, the licensee failed to remove 
power from the control room filtration system A(B) supply dampers by removing fuses prior to 
releasing GK HIS-83 or 160 close pushbuttons to maintain the ESF switchgear room A and B 
halon boundary. The inspectors informed the licensee of the issue. The licensee then entered 
it into their corrective action program as condition reports 10023674 and 10023797.
 
Corrective Actions: The licensee established required reading for maintaining the control 
room filtration system A(B) supply dampers closed in case of a fire in the ESF switchgear and 
updated procedures AP 10-103, ALR KC-888, and OFN KC-016.
 
Corrective Action References: Condition reports 10023674 and 10023797
Performance Assessment:
 
Performance Deficiency: The licensee’s failure to maintain procedure AP 10-103, 
attachment E, compensatory measure for maintaining the ESF switchgear rooms A and B 
halon system functional during CRVIS actuation was a performance deficiency.
 
Screening: The inspectors determined the performance deficiency was more than minor 
because it was associated with the protection against external factors attribute of the 
Mitigating Systems cornerstone and adversely affected the cornerstone objective to ensure 
the availability, reliability, and capability of systems that respond to initiating events to prevent 
undesirable consequences. Specifically, the licensee failed to maintain compensatory 
measures for maintaining the ESF switchgear rooms halon boundary functional during CRVIS 
actuation in the event of a fire.
 
Significance: The inspectors assessed the significance of the finding using IMC 0609 
Appendix F, “Fire Protection and Post - Fire Safe Shutdown [Safety Determination Process] 
SDP.” The inspectors assigned the finding a fire Category 1.4.1 using Inspection Manual 
Chapter 0609, Appendix F, Attachment 1, “Fire Protection Significance Determination 
Process Worksheet,” dated May 2, 2018, because the finding involved fire prevention and 
administrative controls. The inspectors determined that the finding had very low safety 
significance (Green) because the finding: (1) did not increase the likelihood of a fire, delay 
detection of a fire, or resulted in a more significant fire than previously analyzed such that 
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credited safe shutdown strategy could be adversely impacted; and (2) the degraded fire 
confinement element continued to provide adequate fire endurance to prevent fire 
propagation through the fire confinement element given the combustible loading and location 
of equipment important to safe shutdown in the fire area of concern.

Cross-Cutting Aspect: Not Present Performance. Specifically, the performance deficiency 
occurred in 2003 when the licensee incorporated operating experiences associated with fire 
occurring in the ESF switchgear rooms when performing CRVIS surveillance testing.
Enforcement:
 
Violation: Technical specification 5.4.1.d requires that written procedures shall be 
established, implemented, and maintained covering fire protection program implementation. 
Procedure AP 10-103, “Fire Protection Impairment Control,” revision 39, attachment E 
defines the compensatory measures required for out-of-service or degraded fire protection 
features.
 
Contrary to the above, the licensee failed to maintain procedures covering the fire protection 
program implementation. Specifically, from January 2004 to May 2023, as defined in 
procedure AP 10-103, attachment E, the licensee failed to maintain compensatory measures 
to ensure control room filtration supply dampers remained closed to maintain ESF switchgear 
rooms A and B halon system function during CRVIS actuation.

Enforcement Action: This violation is being treated as a non-cited violation, consistent with 
section 2.3.2 of the Enforcement Policy.

Failure to Implement Emergency Exhaust System Surveillance Testing Procedure
Cornerstone Significance Cross-Cutting 

Aspect
Report 
Section

Barrier Integrity Green
NCV 05000482/2023002-02 
Open/Closed

[H.5] - Work 
Management

71111.13

The inspectors identified a Green finding and associated non-cited violation of technical 
specification 5.4.1.e, for the licensee’s failure that written procedures shall be implemented 
for Technical Specification 5.5.11, “Ventilation Filter Testing Program (VFTP).” Specifically, 
the licensee failed to properly implement surveillance Procedure STS PE-006, “Charcoal 
Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units,” revision 17, when establishing the 
prerequisites for performing train A emergency exhaust system in-place leak testing of the 
charcoal absorber causing train B emergency exhaust system to become inoperable when an 
operator opened the wrong breaker.
Description: On May 16, 2023, the inspectors performed a walkdown of train A emergency 
exhaust system to verify the licensee established surveillance Procedure STS PE-006, 
“Charcoal Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units,” revision 17, prerequisites. 
During this walkdown, the inspectors identified the licensee failed to correctly implement 
surveillance procedure STS PE-006. Specifically, the licensee failed to open the train A 
emergency exhaust system humidity control heating coil breaker. Instead, the licensee 
opened the train B emergency exhaust system humidity control heating coil breaker and 
caused train B emergency exhaust system to become inoperable for approximately 
1 hour. The licensee entered this issue into their corrective action program and performed an 
event review.
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The inspectors perform a walkdown of train B emergency exhaust system and reviewed the 
event review and concluded the licensee failed to implement the work management process. 
The key items that resulted in this violation included:

 The licensee protected train B emergency exhaust system with the exception of the 
motor control center containing train B emergency exhaust systems humidity control 
heating coil breaker. The reason the licensee protected train B emergency exhaust 
system was, because on May 15, 2023, train A emergency exhaust system was 
declared inoperable for a failed surveillance test.
 

 The licensee designated the incorrect steps as not applicable prior to implementing 
surveillance procedure STS PE-006. Specifically, the licensee designated steps to 
open train A emergency exhaust system humidity control breaker as not applicable, 
instead of train B emergency exhaust system humidity control breaker.
 

 The licensee failed to verify job site conditions for train A emergency exhaust system 
prior to commencing surveillance procedure STS PE-006, as required by step 7.9.2. 
Specifically, the licensee failed to verify the train A emergency exhaust system 
humidity control breaker was open prior to the inspectors identifying the breaker was 
not open. The inspectors identified the incorrect breaker was opened, because they 
questioned why the train A emergency exhaust system humidity control heat coiling 
status lights where on when power to the unit was removed in accordance with 
STS PE-006.
 

 The licensee failed to ensure the individual from the operational relief crew was fully 
aware of plant status associated with train A emergency exhaust system being 
inoperable and train B emergency exhaust system being protected. 

 
Corrective Actions: The licensee restored train B emergency exhaust system operability by 
closing its humidity control heating coil breaker and performed train A emergency exhaust 
system past operability evaluation, and determined it was operable during the time 
emergency exhaust system B was inoperable.
 
Corrective Action References: Condition report 10024447 
Performance Assessment:
 
Performance Deficiency: The licensee’s failure to open the train A emergency exhaust 
system humidity control heating coil breaker, and instead opened train B emergency exhaust 
system humidity control heating coil breaker, which caused inoperability for train B 
emergency exhaust system, was a performance deficiency.
 
Screening: The inspectors determined the performance deficiency was more than minor 
because it was associated with the human performance attribute of the Barrier Integrity 
cornerstone and adversely affected the cornerstone objective to provide reasonable 
assurance that physical design barriers protect the public from radionuclide releases caused 
by accidents or events. Specifically, the licensee’s failure to open the correct breaker during 
train A emergency exhaust system surveillance testing resulted in train B emergency exhaust 
system being inoperable for 1 hour.
 
Significance: The inspectors assessed the significance of the finding using IMC 0609 
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Appendix A, “The Significance Determination Process (SDP) for Findings At-Power.” Using 
Exhibit 3, Section C, the inspectors determined the finding was of very low safety significance 
(Green) because it only represented a degradation of the radiological barrier function of the 
auxiliary and fuel buildings. 

Cross-Cutting Aspect: H.5 - Work Management: The organization implements a process of 
planning, controlling, and executing work activities such that nuclear safety is the overriding 
priority. The work process includes the identification and management of risk commensurate 
to the work and the need for coordination with different groups or job activities. Specifically, 
the licensee failed to effectively plan and execute work by incorporating risk insights, job site 
conditions, the need for coordination with different groups, and to ensure individuals were 
aware of plant status, the nuclear safety risks associated with work in the field.
Enforcement:
 
Violation: Technical specification 5.4.1.e. requires that written procedures shall be 
established, implemented, and maintained covering all programs specified in Technical 
Specification 5.5, which includes Technical Specification 5.5.11, “Ventilation Filter Testing 
Program (VFTP).” The licensee established surveillance Procedure STS PE-006, “Charcoal 
Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units,” revision 17, to perform in-place leak 
testing of the auxiliary/fuel building emergency exhaust system charcoal absorber.

Contrary to the above, on May 16, 2023, the licensee failed to properly implement written 
procedures specified in technical specification 5.5.11. Specifically, during the performance of 
surveillance procedure STS PE-006, the licensee opened the incorrect breaker rendering 
train B emergency exhaust system inoperable.

Enforcement Action: This violation is being treated as a non-cited violation, consistent with 
section 2.3.2 of the Enforcement Policy.

Observation:  Semiannual Trend Review 71152S
The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s corrective action program, performance indicators, 
system health reports, and other documentation available to help identify performance trends 
that might indicate the existence of a more significant safety issue. The inspectors verified 
that the licensee was taking corrective actions to address the identified adverse trends. The 
inspectors did not review any cross-cutting themes because none existed at the site.

To verify the licensee was taking corrective actions to address identified adverse trends that 
might indicate the existence of a more significant safety issue, the inspectors noted a trend in 
human performance. Specifically, the inspectors noted ten condition reports from April 5, 
2023, to May 26, 2023, associated with human performance events. Examples included:

 Condition report 10024172: The licensee identified, during the performance of quality 
assurance assessment QA-2023-0581, a trend associated with procedure adherence 
with information use procedures.

 Condition report 10024176: The licensee identified the incorrect sample location was 
used for sampling the spent fuel pool. The licensee sampled from normal location 
instead of the alternate location for when the refueling water storage tank was aligned 
for recirculation. The licensee failed to verify procedure prerequisites are met rather 
than assuming they are met based on general plant conditions. 
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 Condition report 10024432: The licensee identified an individual verified the incorrect 
breaker during clearance order verification. The licensee failed to perform an 
adequate pre-job brief, perform a thorough review of the work site, human error 
reduction tool usage. 

 Condition report 10024447 and NCV 2023002-02: The inspectors identified the 
licensee failed to properly implement surveillance procedure STS PE-006, “Charcoal 
Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units,” revision 17, when establishing the 
prerequisites for performing train A emergency exhaust system in-place leak testing of 
the charcoal absorber causing train B emergency exhaust system to become 
inoperable when an operator opened the wrong breaker. 

 Condition report 10024456: The licensee identified train A essential service water 
pump missed surveillance. The train A essential service water pump was placed on 
an increased frequency (every 45 days) to perform vibration measures due to being in 
the alert range in accordance with the ASME OM Code. However, the licensed failed 
to perform the surveillance at 45 days due to not having a consistent process for 
changing surveillance frequency in accordance with the ASME OM Code. 

 Condition report 10024699: The licensee tripped emergency diesel generator A during 
post-maintenance testing due to not nulling the voltage regulatory prior to placing it 
into manual. The licensee failed to use human error reduction tools and the latent 
condition contained with the procedure where multiply actions are contained in one 
step. 

 Condition report 10024701: The licensee identified the failure to declare the train A 
offsite circuit inoperable and missed surveillance requirement 3.8.1.1 when the 
emergency diesel generator A was paralleled with the offsite circuit and safety feature 
transformer A load tap changer was in automate. This occurred during 
post-maintenance testing of emergency diesel generator A. The procedure did not 
discuss the technical specification requirements associated with the safety-related 
transformer load tap changer in automatic and the impact on the offsite circuit. 

 Condition reports 10024329, 10024630, and 10023626: The inspectors identified 
three examples of the licensee failure to implement procedure AI 22C-013, “Protected 
Equipment,” revision 3. Specifically, two examples associated with not protecting 
equipment required by AI 22C-013 (H.8 Procedure Adherence) and one example of 
not determining if additional equipment was needed to be protected during technical 
specification equipment outages due to change in which work group performs the 
step.

In response to the above trend, the licensee issued site-wide communications, individual 
corrective actions, and performed a trend analysis documented in condition 
report 10024753.   
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EXIT MEETINGS AND DEBRIEFS

The inspectors verified no proprietary information was retained or documented in this report. 

 On June 8, 2023, the inspectors presented the radioactive effluent and environmental 
monitoring inspection results to J. McCoy, Site Vice President, and other members of the 
licensee staff.

 On July 6, 2023, the inspectors presented the integrated inspection results to J. McCoy, 
Site Vice President, and other members of the licensee staff.
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Documents 
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Documents 
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Documents 
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71111.04 Drawings M-12GK04 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 15
71111.04 Engineering 

Changes 
EER 88-GK-14 GK Control Room Ventilation 0

71111.04 Miscellaneous ED 95-0134 Operational Procedures Required to Address the Scenario of a 
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Human Reliability Analysis 5

71111.04 Miscellaneous WCRE-01 Total Plant Setpoint Document 116
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71111.04 Work Orders WO 23-487314-000
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71111.05 Corrective Action 
Documents 

Condition Reports 10024714, 10024716
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Documents 
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Condition Reports 10023674, 10023797
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Supply Dampers

2

71111.05 Drawings E-13GK19 Schematic Diagram Air Return Dampers to Control Room 
Filter Adsorber units

0

71111.05 Drawings M-12GK03 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 21
71111.05 Drawings M-12GK04 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 15
71111.05 Miscellaneous BAP-23-0155 Breach Authorization Permit 05/27/2023
71111.05 Miscellaneous E-1F9904 Fire Hazard Analysis 11
71111.05 Miscellaneous E-1F9910 Post-Fire Safe Shutdown Area Analysis 16
71111.05 Miscellaneous FPIP-21-0011 Fire Protection Impairment Control Permit 01/11/2021
71111.05 Miscellaneous FPIP-23-0076 Fire Protection Impairment Permit 05/23/2023
71111.05 Miscellaneous WCRE-35 Boundary Matrix 10
71111.05 Procedures ALR KC-888 Fire Protection Panel KC-008 Alarm Response 33
71111.05 Procedures AP 10-103 Fire Protection Impairment Control 39
71111.05 Procedures AP 10-104 Breach Authorization 39A
71111.05 Procedures AP 22C-003 On-Line Nuclear Safety and Generation Risk Assessment 29
71111.05 Procedures BAP-23-0137 Breach Authorization Permit 05/18/2023
71111.05 Procedures FPIP-23-0074 Fire Protection Impairment Permit 05/18/2023
71111.05 Procedures M-12GK01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 14
71111.05 Procedures OFN KC-016 Fire Response 52
71111.05 Procedures STS GK-003 Manual CRIVS Actuation Operability Test 1
71111.05 Procedures STS GK-005B Control Room Ventilation Isolation Response Time Test – 

Train B
1

71111.05 Procedures STS PE-061 Control Room/Control Building Habitability Test 3
71111.05 Procedures SYS GK-121 Control Building HVAC Valve Checklist 18
71111.05 Procedures SYS GK-122 Manual CRVIS Line-Up 25
71111.07A Calculations GK-M-001 Cooling and Heating Load Calculation for Control Room HVAC 4
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System Capabilities During Normal Plant Operation and 
Accident Conditions - (SGK04A/B)

71111.07A Calculations GK-M-001 Rev. 4  
Sequence CN002

Cooling and Heating Load Calculation for Control Room HVAC 
System Capabilities During Normal Plant Operation and 
Accident Conditions - (SGK04A/B)

4

71111.07A Calculations GK-M-009 Tube Plugging Criteria for Control Room A/C Unit SGK04A/B 
Condensers and ESF Switchgear Rooms A/C Unit SGK05A/B 
Condensers.

1

71111.07A Calculations GK-M-010 Tube Pitting Criteria for Control Room SGK04A/B and 
Electrical Switch Gear Rooms SGK05A/B Condensing Units. 

0

71111.07A Corrective Action 
Documents 

Condition Report 10024426

71111.07A Drawings M-1HX001 Heat Exchanger Tube Sheet Map Document Index & General 
Notes.

89

71111.07A Drawings N1387-637B-A1 SGK04A & SGK04B Air Conditioner Refrigeration Schematic. 9
71111.07A Miscellaneous M-622.1A-00089 Instruction Manual for SGK04A, SGK04B, SGK05A & SGK05B 

Air Conditioning Condensers.
W18

71111.07A Miscellaneous M-622.1A-VDS-
1.02

SGK04A/B Condenser Vendor Data Sheet 04/11/2005

71111.07A Procedures AP 23L-002 Heat Exchanger Program 5
71111.07A Procedures MPE GK-003 Control Room and Class 1E A/C Units Preventive 

Maintenance Activity. 
8

71111.07A Procedures MPE GK-004 GK Unit Preparation for Work 12
71111.07A Procedures QCP-20-518 Visual Examination of Heat Exchangers and Piping 

Components.
8

71111.07A Procedures STS MT-072 SGK04A Heat Exchanger Inspection. 7
71111.07A Procedures STS MT-073 SGK04B Heat Exchanger Inspection 6
71111.07A Work Orders WO 17-430780-000, 19-453962-000, 19-454117-000, 

20-457760-000, 20-463375-000, 20-465267-000, 
21-470597-000, 21-473007-000, 22-478969-000, 
22-48-497-000

71111.11Q Procedures EGM FR-H1 Response to Loss of Secondary Heat Sink 37
71111.12 Corrective Action 

Documents 
Condition Reports 119268, 10011933, 10017443, 10017549, 10017590, 

10017591, 10018051, 10019604, 10020190, 10020251, 
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Documents 
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71111.12 Drawings M-12GK01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 14
71111.12 Drawings M-1H3411 

Sheet 1
Heating Ventilating and Air Cond. Control Building El. 2016’-
00”

5

71111.12 Engineering 
Changes 

CCP 014515 SGK04A/B Control Room A/C Fan Sheaves 0

71111.12 Engineering 
Changes 

DECP 012327 Approval of Remanufactured ESFAS and LSELS Circuit 
Boards

0
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71111.12 Procedures ALR 00-063A CRVIS 18A
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71111.12 Procedures EDI 23M-020 Engineering Desktop Instruction Determining the Safety 

Significance of Structures, Systems and Components within 
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5

71111.12 Procedures MPE VD-001 M627A Ventilation Damper Maintenance 17
71111.12 Procedures STS GK-001A Control Room Emergency Vent System Train A Operability 

Test
32

71111.12 Procedures STS IC-208A 4KV Loss of Voltage and Degraded Voltage TADOT NB01 Bus 
– SEP GRP 1

8

71111.12 Procedures STS IC-255A Channel Operational Test Control Room Air Intake Radiation 
Monitor GK RE-005

16A

71111.12 Procedures STS KJ-001A Integrated D/G and Safeguards Actuation Test – Train A 72
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22

Inspection 
Procedure

Type Designation Description or Title Revision or 
Date

71111.15 Drawings M-12GG01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Fuel Building HVAC 8
71111.15 Drawings M-12GK01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 14
71111.15 Drawings M-12GK02 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 23
71111.15 Drawings M-12GK03 Piping and instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 21
71111.15 Drawings M-12GK04 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 15
71111.15 Procedures AP 16E-002 Post Maintenance Testing Development 21A
71111.15 Procedures AP 23-009 Control Room Envelope Habitability Program 3A
71111.15 Procedures AP 23L-002 Heat Exchanger Program 5
71111.15 Procedures AP 26C-004 Operability Determination and Functionality Assessments 48
71111.15 Procedures MGE EOOP-05 Insulation Resistance Testing 28A
71111.15 Procedures MPE RC-001 Room Cooler Maintenance 13
71111.15 Procedures STN PE-036 Safety Related Room Cooler Heat Transfer Verification and 

Performance Trending
17

71111.15 Procedures STS AE-209B Main Feed Reg Valve Bypass valve Inservice Test Train B 7
71111.15 Procedures STS IC-208A 4KV Loss of Voltage and Degraded Voltage TADOT NB01 Bus 

– SEP GRP 1
8

71111.15 Procedures STS PE-004 Aux Building and Control Room Pressure Test 20
71111.15 Procedures STS PE-006 Charcoal Adsorber In-Place Leak Test Safety Related Units 17
71111.15 Procedures STS PE-010 Control Room A/C System Flow Rate Verification A Train 4A, 4B
71111.15 Work Orders WO 07-292179-000, 07-292179-001, 07-292179-002, 
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17-434100-000, 18-445253-000, 19-449804-000, 
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22-480994-001, 22-483479-000
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10022470, 10023456, 10023593, 10023594, 10023708, 
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Documents 
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71111.18 Drawings E-13GK19 Schematic Diagram Air Return Dampers to Control Room 
Filter Absorber Units

0

71111.18 Drawings J-201-00133 Wiring Diagram PR-068 W15
71111.18 Drawings J-201-00139 Wiring Diagram RP-068 W16
71111.18 Drawings M-12GK01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Control Building HVAC 14
71111.18 Engineering 

Changes 
DECP 020700 EDG Crankcase Cover Gasket 0

71111.18 Miscellaneous 2010-005 USAR Change Request 01/11/2010
71111.18 Miscellaneous 95-033 USAR Change Request 02/15/1995
71111.18 Miscellaneous 97-053 USAR Change Request 02/05/1997
71111.18 Miscellaneous FPIP-23-0068 Fire Protection Impairment 0
71111.18 Miscellaneous M-018 Design Specification for Standby Diesel Generators for Wolf 

Creek Generating Station
14

71111.18 Miscellaneous M-018-00309 Instruction Manual for Emergency Diesel Generator System W141
71111.18 Miscellaneous PMR 04773 Instrument Loop GKAI-2/3 Spared in Place 0
71111.18 Miscellaneous SCA-92-0583 Safety Classification Analysis 1
71111.18 Procedures ALR 00-063A CRVIS 18A
71111.18 Procedures ALR KC-888 Fire Protection Panel KC-008 Alarm Response 34
71111.18 Procedures AP 05-007 Determination of Safety Classification 15A
71111.18 Procedures AP 14B-001 Chemical Control Program 27
71111.18 Procedures AP 23-009 Control Room Envelope Habitability Program 3A
71111.18 Procedures OFN KC-016 Fire Response 53
71111.18 Procedures OFN KJ-032 Local Emergency Diesel Startup 16
71111.18 Procedures OFN PR-013 Control Room Not Habitable 23
71111.18 Procedures SYS GK-122 Manual CRVIS Line-up 25
71111.24 Calculations EG-M-046 Hydraulic Analysis of the Component Cooling Water System 

for Break Flow Determination and Orifice Sizing
3

71111.24 Calculations GK-M-001 Cooling and Heating Load Calculation for Control Room HVAC 
System Capabilities during Normal Plant Operation and 
Accident Conditions- (SGK04A/B)

4

71111.24 Corrective Action 
Documents 

Condition Reports 10021799, 10021800, 10021801, 10022090, 10024604, 
10025080, 10025468

71111.24 Corrective Action Condition Reports 10023591, 10024378, 10025467
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71111.24 Drawings E-13EJ12 Schematic Diagram Instrumentation 2
71111.24 Drawings M-12EG02 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Component Cooling 

Water
29

71111.24 Drawings M-12EJ01 Piping and Instrumentation Diagram Residual Heat Removal 
System

57

71111.24 Miscellaneous BAP-23-0136 Breach Authorization Permit 05/18/2023
71111.24 Miscellaneous E-025-00007 

Sheet 137
CCP B Miniflow ISO W16

71111.24 Miscellaneous WCRE-34 Fourth 10-Year Interval Inservice Testing Basis Document 13
71111.24 Miscellaneous WCRE-38 Surveillance Frequency Control Program Test Interval List 1
71111.24 Procedures ALR 00-063A CRVIS 18As
71111.24 Procedures AP 16E-002 Post Maintenance Testing Development 21A
71111.24 Procedures AP 21A-002 Diverse and Flexible Coping Mitigation Strategies (FLEX) 

Program
3A

71111.24 Procedures AP 21G-001 Control of Locked Component Status 78C
71111.24 Procedures AP 23-009 Control Room Envelope Habitability Program 3A
71111.24 Procedures AP 23D-001 Motor Operated Valve Program 4A
71111.24 Procedures AP 29G-001 RCS Unidentified Leak Rate Monitoring Program 6
71111.24 Procedures CKL ZL-001 Auxiliary Building Reading Sheets 117
71111.24 Procedures HVAC-001 NH91 Hydramotor Damper Actuator Changeout 4
71111.24 Procedures MGE LT-008 Routine Electrical Limitorque Operator Maintenance 8B
71111.24 Procedures MGE LT-100 Limitorque Valve Operator General Notes & Details 13
71111.24 Procedures MPE GK-004 GK Unit Preparation for Work 12
71111.24 Procedures MPM LT-001 Limitorque Operator Minor Maintenance, Lubrication, and 

Inspection
15A

71111.24 Procedures STN BG-202 Chemical & Volume Control System Valve Test 3A
71111.24 Procedures STN EF-201 ESW System Valve Test 9
71111.24 Procedures STS BB-006 RCS Water Inventory Balance Using NPIS Computer 23
71111.24 Procedures STS BG-100A Centrifugal Charging System “A” Train Inservice Pump Test 51
71111.24 Procedures STS BG-100B Centrifugal Charging System “B” Train Inservice Pump Test 56A
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71111.24 Procedures STS EJ-209A Train A RHR System Inservice Valve Test 6
71111.24 Procedures STS GK-002A Control Room A/C Unit Operability Test 3
71111.24 Procedures STS GK-003 Manual CRVIS Actuation Operability Test 1
71111.24 Procedures STS IC-263 STS IC-263, Channel Calibration Containment Normal Sump 

Level Loops LF LPL-0089 and LF LPL-0094
2

71111.24 Procedures STS IC-455B Channel Calibration Control Room Air Intake Radiation 
Monitor GK RE-004

18A

71111.24 Procedures STS ML-001 Monthly Surveillance Log 50A
71111.24 Procedures STS PE-004 Aux Building and Control Room Pressure Test 20
71111.24 Procedures STS PE-010A Control Room A/C System Flow Rate Verification A Train 4B
71111.24 Procedures STS PE-061 Control Room/Control Building Habitability Test 3
71111.24 Procedures SYS BG-201 Shifting Charging Pumps 76
71111.24 Procedures SYS GK-122 Manual CRVIS Line-Up 25
71111.24 Procedures SYS GK-123 Control Building A/C Units Startup and Shutdown 36
71111.24 Procedures SYS KJ-121 Diesel Generator NE01 and NE02 Lineup for Automatic 

Operation
53

71111.24 Procedures SYS KJ-123 Post Maintenance Run of Emergency Diesel Generator A 74
71111.24 Procedures SYS KJ-124 Post Maintenance Run of Emergency Diesel Generator B 75
71111.24 Work Orders WO 6006, 12-362198-003, 11-337724-000, 14-383081-000, 

16-411901-000, 16-413357-000, 17-421829-000, 
17-428577-000, 17-434100-000, 18-444324-000, 
18-444324-005, 18-444324-006, 19-447730-000, 
19-447821-000, 19-449804-000, 20-461790-000, 
20-462103-000, 20-466517-000, 20-466782-000, 
21-472265-000, 21-473302-000, 21-473916-000, 
21-474115-000, 22-477193-000, 22-477646-000, 
22-478271-000, 22-480251-000, 22-481222-000, 
22-481236-000, 22-481236-001, 22-481377-002, 
22-481572-000, 22-481572-001, 22-481604-000, 
22-482165-000, 22-482165-001, 22-482194-000, 
22-482194-001, 22-482755-000, 22-482755-001, 
22-482755-002, 22-483329-000, 22-483384-000, 
22-483467-000, 23-484974-000, 23-488896-000, 
23-488896-001, 23-489078-000, 23-489078-001,  
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71124.06 Corrective Action 
Documents 

Condition Reports 00144908, 10002788, 10003795, 10004226, 10004227, 
10007158, 10015888, 10015954, 10024303, 10024323, 
10024357, 10024376, 10024434, 10024499

71124.06 Procedures AP 02-007 Abnormal Conditions Guidelines 16
71124.06 Procedures AP 06-002 Radiological Emergency Response Plan 23
71124.06 Procedures APF 06-002-02 Emergency Action Levels Technical Bases 01
71124.06 Procedures CHS AX-G01 Unit vent Sampling and/or Exchange of Filters 11
71124.06 Procedures CHS SJ-144A SJ-144 Sampling Instructions 02
71124.06 Procedures STN SP-021A Channel Operational Test Unit Vent Radiation Monitor GT RE-

0021A
5C

71124.06 Procedures STN SP-021B Analog Channel Operational Test Unit Ventilation System 
Radiation Monitor GT RE-0021B

14C

71124.06 Procedures STN SP-045 Channel Operational Test Secondary Liquid Waste System 
Radiation Monitor HF RE-0045

10

71124.06 Procedures STN SP-052 Channel Operational Test Monitor BM RE-0052 09
71124.06 Procedures STN SP-110A Channel Calibration Radwaste Building Vent Radiation Monitor 

GH RE-001A
8B

71124.06 Procedures STN SP-195 Channel Calibration Hi/Lo TDS Discharge to Wastewater 
Treatment Radiation Monitor HF RE-0095

07

71124.06 Procedures STS PE-006 Charcoal Adsorber In-Place Leak Test 17
71124.07 Corrective Action 

Documents 
Condition Report 
(CR)

103228, 10002277, 10005766, 10009759, 10011103, 
10011229, 10011368, 10011380, 10012983, 10024434, 
10024499

71124.07 Corrective Action 
Documents 
Resulting from 
Inspection 

Condition Report 
(CR)

10024452, 10024683, 10024800, 10024809, 10024880, 
10024891, 10024893, 10025025, 10025027, 10025028

71124.07 Miscellaneous 2022 Meteorological Data Report 03/27/2023
71124.07 Miscellaneous 2021 Annual Radiological Environmental Operating Report 04/26/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous 2022 Annual Radiological Environmental Operating Report - 

Report 46
04/27/2023

71124.07 Miscellaneous 2020 Annual Radiological Environmental Operating Report 04/28/2021
71124.07 Miscellaneous NUPIC Audit 

#2022-SA-003
F & J Specialty Products, Inc. 03/14/2022
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71124.07 Miscellaneous NUPIC Audit 
Report #25197

ATI Environmental Inc. 01/10/2023

71124.07 Miscellaneous NUPIC Audit 
Report #25286

Augmented quality audit report of Landauer, Inc. 12/06/2021

71124.07 Miscellaneous QH-2021-2214 REMP Review of 2018 through 2020 Wind Directions 06/28/2021
71124.07 Miscellaneous QH-2023-2510 REMP Review of 2019 through 2021 Wind Directions 04/26/2023 
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-01 01/01/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-15 01/15/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-16 01/16/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-17 01/17/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-25 01/25/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-01-29 01/29/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-02-17 02/17/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-03-14 03/14/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-04-04 04/04/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-08-04 08/04/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-09-12 09/12/2022
71124.07 Miscellaneous STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, 3: 2022-12-11 12/11/2022
71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-002 Review of Radiological Environmental Laboratory Analysis 

Results
13

71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-005 Radiological Environmental Monitoring Program 
Implementation

23

71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-009 Collection, Preparation and Shipment of Sediment and Soil 
Samples

10

71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-011 Collection, Preparation and Shipment of Water Samples 19
71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-012 Collection, Preparation and Shipment of Crop, Vegetable, Fruit 

and Pasturage Samples
11

71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-015 Land Use Census 12
71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-033 Annual Radiological Environmental Operating Report 

Generation
7

71124.07 Procedures AI 07B-034 Radiological Environmental Monitoring Program Air Sampling 15
71124.07 Procedures AI 230-001 Functional Importance Determination 7A
71124.07 Procedures AI 28A-010 Screening Condition Reports 28A



28

Inspection 
Procedure

Type Designation Description or Title Revision or 
Date

71124.07 Procedures AP 06-004 Equipment Important to Emergency Response 10A
71124.07 Procedures AP 07B-003 Offsite Dose Calculation Manual 10
71124.07 Procedures AP 07B-004 Offsite Dose Calculation Manual (Radiological Environmental 

Monitoring Program)
23

71124.07 Procedures AP 07E-001 Validation of Meteorological Data 3
71124.07 Procedures AP 22A-001 Screening, Prioritization and Pre-Approval 24A
71124.07 Procedures STS CR-001 Shift Log for Modes 1, 2, & 3 115A
71124.07 Procedures STS IC-890A Wind Speed Meteorological Instrumentation Channel 

Calibration
18

71124.07 Procedures STS IC-890B Wind Direction/Deviation Meteorological Instrumentation 
Channel Calibration

18A

71124.07 Procedures STS IC-890C 10M/60M Ambient and Differential Temperature 
Instrumentation Channel Calibration

23A

71124.07 Procedures STS IC-890D Sonic Wind Speed/Direction/Deviation Meteorological 
Instrumentation Channel Calibration

3

71124.07 Work Orders WO 2022-
478299-000

STS IC-890C: 10M/60M Ambient and Differential Temperature 
Instrumentation Channel Calibration

09/14/2022

71124.07 Work Orders WO 22-477168-
000

Troubleshoot Met Tower Instrumentation 04/26/2022

71124.07 Work Orders WO 22-477168-
001

Replace Met Tower Data Logger 04/26/2022

71124.07 Work Orders WO 22-481397-
000

STS IC-890A: Perform STS IC-890A Channel Calibration of 
Wind Speed Meteorological Instrumentation

03/23/2023

71124.07 Work Orders WO 22-481410-
000

STS IC-890B: Channel Calibration of Wind Direction 
Meteorological Instrumentation

03/23/2023

71124.07 Work Orders WO 22-481425-
000

STS IC-890D: Perform STS IC-890D Channel Calibration of 
Sonic Wind Speed/Direction/Deviation

03/23/2023

71151 Miscellaneous WCNOC-163 Mitigating System Performance Index (MSPI) Basis Document 13
71151 Procedures AI 26A-008 NRC/INPO/WANO Performance Indicator and MOR Reporting 2
71151 Procedures AP 26A-007 NRC Performance Indicators 11
71152A Corrective Action 

Documents 
Condition Reports 119268, 131147, 143363, 2002-2250, 2003-2449, 10013374, 

10019604, 10012170, 10012929, 10020190, 10020251, 
10021053, 10021055, 10022347, 10023975, 10024331, 
10024340
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71152A Miscellaneous AP 20E-001 Industry Operating Experience Program 31A
71152A Miscellaneous QH-2016-171 2018 Maintenance Rule Periodic Assessment 0
71152A Miscellaneous QH-2020-2054 2020 Maintenance Rule Periodic Assessment 0
71152A Miscellaneous QH-2022-2346 2022 Maintenance Rule Periodic Assessment 0
71152A Miscellaneous SA-2022-0179 Confirmatory Order Item P – Perform an Annual Effectiveness 

Review of the Corrective Actions Associated with NRC CO
0

71152A Miscellaneous WCRE-35 Boundary Matrix
71152A Procedures AP 18-001 Emerging Concerns 3
71152A Procedures AP 20E-001 Industry Operating Experience Program 31A
71152S Corrective Action 

Documents 
Condition Reports 10023626, 10024172, 10024173, 10024176, 10024329, 

10024432, 10024447, 10024456, 10024630, 10024699, 
10024701, 10024702, 10024753

71152S Miscellaneous WCQPM Wolf Creek Quality Program Manual 13
71152S Procedures AP 15C-001 Procedure Writer’s Guide 33A
71152S Procedures AP 15C-002 Procedure Use and Adherence 47
71152S Procedures AP 21E-001 Clearance Orders 44
71152S Procedures STS Ch-021 Spent Fuel Boron Concentration Determination 9A
71152S Procedures SYS KJ-123 Post Maintenance Run of Emergency Diesel Generator A 74
71152S Procedures SYS KJ-124 Post Maintenance Run of Emergency Diesel Generator B 75


